ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 1, 2004
8:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghil |
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 476
" An Act est abl i shing the Al aska St at ehood Cel ebration
Comm ssion; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO 527

"An Act relating to the Alaska Securities Act, including
reports, proxies, consents, authorizations, proxy statenents,

and other materials, civil penalties, refunds of proceeds from
violations, restitution, and investnent adviser representatives;

and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 459
"An Act requiring an auditable paper trail for electronic voting
machi nes; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 459( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 460
"An Act relating to absences to provide care for certain

relatives for purposes of pernmanent fund dividend eligibility;
and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 1, 2004



- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 331

"An Act relating to federal requirenents for governnmental plan
and other qualifications for the teachers' retirenent system
the public enployees' retirement system and the judicial
retirement system and providing for an effective date.”
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 476
SHORT TI TLE: AK STATEHOOD CELEBRATI ON COVM SSI ON
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) ANDERSON
02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H STA, FIN
04/ 01/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
BILL: HB 527
SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA SECURI TI ES ACT
SPONSOR( S): STATE AFFAI RS
03/ 01/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 01/ 04 (H STA, JUD, FIN
03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
03/ 09/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d
03/ 09/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)
03/ 26/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102
03/ 26/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
04/ 01/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 459
SHORT TI TLE: PAPER TRAI L FOR ELECTRONI C VOTI NG MACHI NE
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GARA
02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H STA
03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 09/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d
03/ 09/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)
03/ 18/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 18/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d
03/ 18/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)
03/ 30/ 04 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
03/ 30/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d
HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 1, 2004



03/ 30/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)
04/ 01/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 460
SHORT TI TLE: ALLOWABLE ABSENCES AND PFDS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) KERTTULA

02/ 16/ 04 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H STA, FIN
04/ 01/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

JIM SHI NE, Staff

to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Read the sponsor statenent and answered
guestions during the hearing on HB 476, on behalf of
Represent ati ve Anderson, sponsor.

GARY R CONNER, 1st Deputy Bureau Chi ef

| nvest nent Protection Bureau

Ofice of New York State Attorney CGeneral (AG ElIliot Spitzer
New Yor k, New York

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 527.

VI NCE USERA, Senior Securities Exam ner

Di vi sion of Banking, Securities & Corporations

Department of Comrunity & Econom ¢ Devel opnent ( DCED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behalf
of the division during the hearing on HB 527.

VWALTER JOHNS
No address provided.
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 527.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 459, introduced anmendnents
to a conmmttee substitute.

LAURA GLAI SER, Director

Di vi sion of El ections
O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 1, 2004



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the division during
t he hearing on HB 459.

SANDRA ZI RNHELD

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of herself during the
heari ng on HB 459.

AURORA HAVK, Staff

to Representative Beth Kerttul a

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 460 on behal f of
Representative Kerttula, sponsor.

| RIS MANYA PUNGOW YI - REED
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 460.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-52, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Coghill, Berkowitz, and Wyhrauch were present at the
call to order. Representatives Lynn and G uenberg arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 476- AK STATEHOOD CELEBRATI ON COW SSI ON

Nunber 0043

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 476, "An Act establishing the Al aska Statehood
Cel ebration Conm ssion; and providing for an effective date.”
Nunber 0052

JIM SHINE, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of Representative Anderson, sponsor, read
t he sponsor statenent as foll ows:

January 2009 wll wmark the 50th anniversary of
Al aska's adnmission as the 49th state of the United

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 1, 2004



States of Anerica. It is inportant the State of
Al aska recognize this landmark with a celebration of
the state's magnificent heritage and to reflect wupon
the opportunities that 50 years of statehood have
brought to the state.

House Bill 476 wll establish the Alaska Statehood
Cel ebration Conmi ssion. This conm ssion shall consist
of 17 nmenbers; 12 public nenbers [shall be] appointed
by the governor. ... At least two shall be residents
of and be appointed from each of the four judicial
districts in Al aska. The presiding officer from the
Al aska House of Representatives and the Al aska Senate
will appoint a majority and mnority nenber from each
body. The governor ... or a designee ... wll occupy
the 17th seat.

The Al aska Statehood Cel ebration Conm ssion shall plan
and administer all official state activities |eading
up to the 50th anniversary of Al aska statehood. The
comm ssion wll initiate the public process to solicit
i deas about the cel ebration.

In addition, the commenorative quarter honoring the
State of Alaska ... wll be issued in the sane
cal endar year in whi ch the Al aska St at ehood
Cel ebration occurs.

MR SHINE told the commttee that through his own research he
has discovered that other states have [drafted] simlar
| egi sl ati on. For example, legislators in Wom ng and Ut ah have
created conmi ssions to celebrate their centennial celebrations.
In response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch, he said he
believes Alaska did sonething |ike this for its 25th
anni versary.

Nunber 0249

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL asked how many years would be spanned
wi th the conm ssion.

MR. SHI NE answered that the effective date would be January 1,
2005, so there would be up to four years of planning. He
i ndicated that other states have decided it's inportant to plan
ahead for a 50th anniversary, and he nentioned including a
public process for initiating ideas.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL turned to page 2 of the proposed
| egi sl ati on. He noted that there would be at least two
| egi sl atures involved, and he asked how t hat woul d work.

MR. SHI NE said he doesn't know, but suggested that it would be
left to the discretion of the governor. He stated his
assunption that two new nenbers wuld be appointed to the
conmmi ssi on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL hi ghlighted [paragraph] (2), on page 2,
begi nning on line 8, which read as foll ows:

(2) the speaker of the house of representatives shal
appoi nt one nenber of the house of representatives who
is a nmenber of the nmgjority caucus and one nenber of
the house of representatives who is a nenber of the
mnority caucus, in consultation with the |eadership
of that caucus;

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL noted that the sane applied to the
Senat e. He said he wonders if a provision for transition from
one legislature to the other should be included.

Nunber 0432

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Shine to take those concerns under
advi senment. [HB 476 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 527- ALASKA SECURI TI ES ACT

Number 0450

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 527, "An Act relating to the Al aska Securities
Act, including reports, proxies, consents, authorizations, proxy
statenents, and other materials, civil penalties, refunds of
proceeds from violations, restitution, and investnent adviser
representatives; and providing for an effective date.”

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH infornmed the conmittee that he had invited
Warren Buffet, Berkshire Hathaway, Inc., to testify and M.
Buffet's office responded with issues related to the bill. He
indicated that the issues that were brought forth were those
relating to the tension between corporate governnments, the
desire to mamintain a flourishing capitalist system in [the
United States], and the role of state governnent in the
oversi ght of corporations.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 1, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH expressed the need to ensure that Al aska
maintains a healthy oversight through its public policies
enacted by the legislature and a system of |laws that invite
participation by the private sector into the state. Conversely,
he expressed the need to ensure that those corporations doing
business in Alaska do so in an honest and ethical way that
profits both the corporation and the people of Al aska. He al so
indicated the need to ensure that the State of Al aska has the
appropriate tools to enforce the public policies it enacts and
exact sone sort of retribution to cover the cost of state
governnment's action in enforcing its laws while ensuring that
those harned by inproper corporate actions are fully
conpensat ed.

CHAI R VEEYHRAUCH nentioned comunicating through the office of
New York's attorney general, Elliot Spitzer. He noted that M.
Spitzer is known for his aggressive activities in enforcing
state policies against nutual funds and other corporations that
have charged exorbitant or hidden fees, for exanple, and for
attenpting to recover those [fees]. He opined that sone of the
actions of that attorney general's office have been admrable.
Chair Weyhrauch noted that the first person to testify was
associated with the New York attorney general's office.

Number 0689

GARY R CONNER, 1st Deputy Bureau Chief, Investnent Protection
Bureau, Ofice of New York State Attorney GCeneral (AG ElIliot

Spitzer, indicated he would explain the New York statutory
schene and describe sone of the approaches and corporate
responses. He revealed that he is not famliar wth Al aska

statutes and would only be addressing the New York system which
he characterized as "sonewhat different than nost all states.”

MR. CONNER stated that New York has never adopted the "Uniform
Security Tax"; therefore, it does not hold admnistrative
hearings or issue orders. He noted that the State of New York's
securities laws were enacted in 1921, well before the federal
statutes. He said, "W issue the issuers of securities, not the
securities thenselves." He offered exanples. M. Conner
explained that the statute is largely an anti-fraud statute,
designed to prevent fraud in the offer of securities and
comodities. New York's definition of fraud is: "Any act
tending to deceive or mslead the purchasing public.” The Act,
which is to be construed liberally, is designed to protect the
i nexperienced investor.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 1, 2004



MR. CONNER said, "One of the advantages we have in New York is
that, in any civil action we my bring - or msdeneanor
prosecution, we do not have to show intent, ... proof of a sale,
[or] ... damages. It's a per se liability statute, neaning a
violation - whether knowng or not - can get you in jeopardy in
terms of a civil action.” M. Conner noted that the statute
al so provides that any violation may result in either a crimna
or civil penalty. He explained the distinction between the two.
He said that the main tool [the New York AGs office] uses is
its ability to issue subpoenas and request information prior to
bringing any action. The penalty for refusing to respond,
testify, or show up is a m sdeneanor

MR. CONNER said that the investigations can be conducted based
on any source of information, as well as based on any allegation

of fraud or nerely because it's in the public interest. He
noted that the basic investigations [the AGs office] conducts
are kept confidential. He explained, "Although we are

i nvestigating sonething, we do not know at the begi nning whet her
or not there actually is wongdoing, so we believe that those we

are | ooking at need protection there." He offered exanples. At
the end of the investigation, he said, a choice can be made in
how to proceed: "One way is civil, one way is crimnal, or we

can do both."

MR. CONNER noted that one of the tools [the AGs office] has is
to obtain ex parte orders fromthe court, prior to commencing an

action. Those orders direct the witnesses to appear and to
produce docunents. He added, "And we can also get ex parte
injunctive relief, based upon a standard of what is proper and
expedi ent . " He clarified that it's not the normal prelimnary

i njunction standard, but is a rmuch |ower standard. The ex parte
orders result in public testinony; the public can attend and
hear whatever is being said by the w tnesses. Because it is an
investigation, there is not cross-exan nation.

MR. CONNER said that if the decision is nmade to bring a civi

action, the renmedy in that <civil action is a permnent
injunction from the securities business. He said, "The statute
is all or nothing; a judge has no discretion.™ He offered an
exanpl e. He continued, "In those actions we can also get
restitution, we can get damages, and we can have receivers
appointed, as well as other types of <creative injunctive
relief." M. Conner noted that the crimnal provisions prohibit
fraud, deception, and concealnent, anong other things. He
of fered exanpl es. He said, "If we have any crimnal violation

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 1, 2004



that we are proceeding on, we can also use the state's penal
laws ...."

MR CONNER stated that, besides the nmin securities |aws, New

York has other statutes. For exanple, wunder the state's
busi ness corporation law, directors can be renoved from offices
in corporations. There is also a broad statute under the
executive law, in which any fraud or illegality in the course of

busi ness i s actionabl e.
Number 1098

MR. CONNER stated that he would next offer a brief overview of
analyst and IPO [initial public offering] investigations, as
wel | as talk about the mutual fund investigation. He noted that
30 years ago, [the New York AG s office] began an investigation

of Merrill Lynch, based upon newspaper articles indicating that
research reports by analysts for the various conpanies were not
real ly accurate. He noted that it was a difficult subject to

address, Dbecause it's a conplex financial analysis that the
anal ysts go through. He offered two cases, both of which were
covered by a nman naned Henry Bl odgett (ph) at Merrill Lynch. In
the first case, the stock was propped up with high ratings while
the stock prices plumeted, and the ratings were kept high until

a nerger and acquisition deal was consumated. I n anot her
instance, the ratings for the stock were downgraded on the day
it was publicly announced that Merrill Lynch would not be the
banker for the deal. M. Conner related that through
investigation, e-mails "revealed a corporate culture where the
anal ysts and many other people at Merrill Lynch were very nuch
aware that the ratings were not accurate.” He offered further

details regarding the e-nmails. He stated that the heart of the
case was that the public was told one thing about what the
ratings neant, while Merrill Lynch knew that information was
I naccur at e.

MR. CONNER said that the AG could have brought a crimnal
prosecution. However, the AG was clear that he did not want to
bring Merrill Lynch down. He clarified that what the AG was
trying to achieve was not so nmuch punishnment as trying to get
the system to work - to be honest. The solution was to
ultimately get Merrill Lynch to agree to certain reforns. He
said, "The conpany itself seened to be dunbfounded about what we
were tal king about. And one of the ways the AG got their
attention was by bringing one of these X party orders, in which
the e-mails and other docunents were attached to the court
papers, and then the public becanme aware of what was really

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 1, 2004



going on." M. Conner offered details regarding sone of the
reforms that resulted.

MR. CONNER said the settlenent, which was $100 mllion, resulted
in New York giving half of the noney to the North Anerican
Securities Admnistrators Association. That association, he
noted, represents the 50 states, as well as Canada and Mexi co.
He said, "From that nonent on, we started working with all the
states, and we commenced a nuch larger analyst investigation,
which eventually led to the $1.4 billion Wall Street reform
with 10 of the biggest investnment banking institutions in the

country." He described the effort on the Wll Street
investigations and settlenents as "a broad investor regulatory
system | ooking at an industry.” He noted it was discovered that

"the conpanies thenselves were very jealous about being at a
di sadvantage from their conpetitors, and fairly early on they
took the position they would go for the reforns, but they wanted
ot her banking institutions involved." M. Conner noted that
that ultimately happened.

Number 1395

MR. CONNER stated that part of the analyst investigations
i nvol ved | ooking at the issue of I1PGs. Regarding the inaccurate
ratings system it was found that the executives that were being
covered with the ratings were given advantageous |POs, nore or
less as favors for turning over banking business to the
i nvest nent banki ng house. He said, "W then conmenced an action
in which we thought to get the return of the nonies that the

executives received from their |1PO allocations. W felt that
t hose nonies belonged to the corporations - that these were not
the individuals who should benefit. And ultimately the
sharehol ders were to benefit.” He noted that part of the

settlement was funding |law school arbitration clinics to help
the investors.

Nunber 1450

MR. CONNER noted that the current issue on the table is the
mut ual fund investigation. He said it was found that nmany
conpanies were disclosing in their prospectuses that investors
could only make trades at a certain rate, and they could not
time their trades after the market closed, "or otherwise to go
in and out of the market and get an advantage over the |long-term
i nvestors, which is what the mutual fund industry was designed
for." He also noted that late trading - trading done after 4

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 1, 2004



p.m - is prohibited by the federal U S. Securities and Exchange
Comm ssi on (SEC).

MR. CONNER gave sone exanples of cases and reiterated that the
AGs policy was not to bring down the conpanies, but rather to
clean up the issues, make the public aware, and to [hold the
conpany to what it said]. He noted that the settlenents in the
mut ual fund cases have also brought other types of renedies.
For exanple, in one case, eight directors of the board are
agreeing to resign because of their conduct. He stated that
[the AG has al so addressed the fees that are being charged and,
in many of the settlenments, the fees are being reduced over a
five-year period. He said the fee issue cones from the fact
that the average investor doesn't really know what the fee is
for a nmutual fund. By not know ng, investors cannot fairly nmake
a choice between different funds, as to where to invest the
noney. He stated that the issue really conmes down to
di sclosure. |If the investor was not told what was going on then
t hat was w ongdoi ng.

Nunmber 1559

MR. CONNER said there is an alleged perception that the federa
government and the states are at odds over sonme of the
investigations. That sinply is not true, he stated. Except for
the first mutual fund investigation, he noted, [the New York
AG s office] has worked with the SEC and other states. The sane
is true regarding the analyst investigations. He clarified as
fol | ows:

The issues sonmetines conme down to the fact that we
have crimnal jurisdiction in New York, which the SEC
does not have. And when you have crimna

jurisdiction, there are various safeguards that play
to the investigation. Certainly, when one is in the
grand jury, we cannot talk about that. And sone of
our cases, it looks |like we spring them but really
there are certain prohibitions on us.

MR. CONNER said that the overall policy the AG has adopted is to
have honesty in the business place. He remarked that no one is
agai nst busi nesses or agai nst making profits.

Nunmber 1628

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH told M. Conner that the State of Al aska nanages
a $28 billion fund and is charged wth follow ng prudent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 1, 2004



investor rules and returning investnent on that fund to help
fund governnent, provide dividends to the people, and preserve
the fund for future generations. He asked if M. Conner's
of fice handl es nerger and acquisition issues.

MR. CONNER answered no, but said the office mght get involved
froman anti-trust viewpoint, as opposed to a securities issue.
In response to further questions from Chair Wyhrauch, he
clarified that the Act he had previously nentioned was the
"Martin Act", which was effective in 1921. He said it did not
come about necessarily because of Wall Street, but just because

of general investnents. He nentioned "boiler roonms" and "fly-
by-ni ght"” deals that occurred in the early 1920s, which pronpted
the legislature to consider different bills. In response to

anot her question from Chair Wyhrauch, he said [the New York AQG
doesn't give out notice to all the states' AGs, but rather it
gives a heads up to the North Anmerican Securities Admi nistrative
Association. He gave exanples, including trading off cases with
other states and working with other states. An exception is
crimnal cases, he said.

Number 1801

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that Alaska is far renpved from New York,
both in time zone and di stance. He asked M. Conner, "What are

the ... practical inpedinents or benefits to ... a state like
[ Alaska's] adopting such a pervasive, aggressive securities
i nvestigation schene ... such as New York has?"

MR. CONNER opined that the advantage that New York has is in
having the crimnal jurisdiction. Crimnal jurisdiction is a
powerful tool because soneone comng in to give testinony or
produce docunments never knows what [the New York AG s office] is
going to do. He said, "Qur policy is not to meke a
determ nation on, ultimately, how we're going to proceed until
towards the end of an investigation, when we have a handle on
the facts.”" He added that he thinks it's that crimnal threat
and the X party order that acts as a deterrent and certainly
"noves us to settlenent quicker than we m ght normally nove."

Nunmber 1858

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndicated that [the Alaska AG s] staff
is small conpared to that of New York's.

MR. CONNER interjected that "nost people don't know that we only
have about 12 |awers working on these big Wall Street cases.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 1, 2004



In response to a question from Representative G uenberg
regarding the legislature's role in the current investigations,
M. Conner said that although the New York State Legislature has
not really been involved, it submts different bills that
attenpt to inprove it's statutory schene. He offered his
understanding that the other elected official in New York who
has been very active is the state conptroller. He expl ai ned
that the state conptroller's office, which is governs the state
pensi ons funds, has been active in [encouraging] other states to
devel op principles that conpanies nust follow if they wish to
have the state investnents. The aforenentioned is a different
way of approaching the problem he comrented. In response to
Representative Guenberg, he explained that the conptroller's
office does this by informal policy rather than by regul ation.
Some of the conptrollers have put out a statenment of principles,
whi ch are guidelines for investing the state's noney.

Nunber 1975

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Alaska does not have a
conptroller, but has independent pension boards and a board of
trustees for the Alaska pernmanent fund. The guidelines for
those boards are statutorily general. However, M. Conner is
di scussi ng detail ed guidelines, he opined.

MR. CONNER clarified that they are not that detail ed because the
conptroll er decides where the investnents go and he/she has the
authority to set conditions regarding where to put the noney.

He offered his understanding that "the principles ... are only a
few pages long, but they do nmke certain requirenents of
conpani es. " He added, "Now, whether or not they're nore

detailed guidelines and positions in other docunents that have
not been nmade public - that | don't know. "

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what Al aska can do to
partici pate.

MR. CONNER answered that one of the things that helps is when

certain conpanies are located in the state. |In that case, often
the state securities admnistrators are nore know edgeabl e about
those conpanies and their activity. Still, because a |ot of
trading goes through New York, he said, "we generally have
jurisdiction, sonehow. " He suggested, "I think one thing that

could be done is for other states to contact us to see what
assistance we can provide and help wth, and just generally get
what ever know edge we have about the industries.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "W are developing, with a small

group of other states ..., a group that's very conpetitive state
to state in trust administration, and we are constantly revising
our trust laws to be nore conpetitive.” He added that "this

group” includes bankers and estate planning lawers and it can
nove fairly quickly; however, he offered his understanding that
there is not any oversight of the group at the state |evel. He
asked M. Conner if he has had any indication of "anything going
on there."

MR. CONNER responded that he is not really aware of that whole
area, in ternms of trust admnistration. He stated that how New
York really works is through the North American Securities
Adm ni strative Association.

Nunmber 2136

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL referred to M. Conner's previous remark
about holding crimnal penalty over an investigation. He stated
that one of the things "we are always |ooking for here" is how
to keep governnent from being intimdating, while still being
able to produce good results. He asked M. Conner to give sone
i dea of the accountability structure "there."

MR. CONNER answered that, in terns of the accountability within
[the New York AG s office], decisions regarding whether to bring
a crimnal case or not are nade at the very highest |levels. He
said there are many |levels of supervisory review. He said, "The
accountability at the end of the day - it's the attorney general
to the public. And he has that trust of the public, and if he
m suses that trust, then the public has a way of dealing wth
that during the next election.”

MR. CONNER, in response to a request by Representative Coghill
to explain the process by which the New York attorney general is
selected, stated that the AG is a public official who runs for
office at the sane tinme as the governor, |ieutenant governor,
and conptroller. Each political party puts up its candidate,
and it's a statewide election separate from the presidential
el ection or the election for the mayor of New York. In further
response to Representative Coghill, he confirmed that has been
true since the beginning of New York's securities |aw

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee is made up of representatives from all across the
state, with a wde variety of viewoints. He welconed M.
Conner and his staff to come to Al aska sone tine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 1, 2004



Number 2237

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Conner if it is his opinion that
if [New York] had adopted the Uniform Securities Act, it
woul dn' t have been able to proceed in "any of t hese
i nvestigations."

MR. CONNER answered that New York's Martin Act gives "us" nore
power than the Uniform Securities Act, but he added that he
couldn't say whether the Uniform Securities Act would have
"absol utely precluded us from doi ng what we're doing."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that M. Conner had said that a
person who's guilty under "the civil portion" is sinply barred
from further security action, instead of having a "variable
time. " He asked M. Conner, "Do you think that that's been
inportant so that it's all or nothing?"

MR. CONNER replied as foll ows:

| think that is inportant, because whenever one goes
into the judicial system quite honestly, every |awer
thinks they have the greatest case in the world, and
soneone's not going to come out happy. So, you're
al ways taking a chance; even though you may eval uate
your case one way, the courts can view it a different
way. So, | think the fact that if you pushed this
before a judge, the possibility that you're going to
get permanently barred from the industry, and all the
inplications that has, is a great deterrent.

O course, what | didn't explain now, and what | wll
now, is that we, as an agency and institution, ... can
consent on our own to a less than permanent bar, but
if it's put to a judge, that judge is all or nothing.

Number 2329

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM recalled M. Conner's previous comrent that
due process rights do not kick in during an investigative
process.

MR. CONNER noted that, under a U'S. Suprene Court decision, an
investigation is viewed differently +than an adjudicatory
pr oceedi ng. When sonething is being adjudicated and a
determ nation is being nade based upon the facts present, the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 1, 2004



W tnesses have rights to lawers, there is a reqgqular cross-
exam nation, and transcripts are provided. However, in an
i nvestigation, those particular rights don't apply. He said:

In New York ... we generally take the position an
attorney nmay be present during testinony for the
purpose of advising a witness as to his or her rights
and privileges, but it's not a participatory type of
session; it's really an investigation for us to try
and determne what the facts are through the neans
that we think are best available. So, that is a
di stinction.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if M. Conner is maintaining that the
Fifth Amendnent rights don't apply during an investigative
process.

MR. CONNER specified that the Fifth Amendnent rights apply
during the investigative process, it's just sone of the other
traditional things - such as [formal hearings in which there's
cross] exam nation and a determ nation nade by the agency - that
don't apply in an investigation.

TAPE 04-52, SIDE B
Number 2375

MR. CONNER said, "If we, at the end of an investigation, believe
there's wong doing, we can't, on our own, do anything; we have
to go to the court system That's where the due process rights
fully kick in, and the courts will protect both parties in that
situation.”

Number 2344

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, w th respect to the provision that
does not give the judge the authority to issue less than a
permanent injunction, asked if that has ever been chall enged on
a separation of powers basis.

MR. CONNER answered that he is not aware of that. He clarified,
"The New York Court of Appeals, which is the highest court, has
interpreted the statute in New York as being that way - that
it's an all or nothing statute - but | don't believe it's been
chal l enged on a separation of powers situation.”

Nunber 2311

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if a person can be forced to talk
during an investigative case; he asked what would happen if that
person said he/she didn't want to talk.

MR. CONNER replied as foll ows:

If a person doesn't want to talk to us, we wusually
have issued a subpoena already, and our options are
t wo: One is to go into the civil part of the state
suprene court, which is New York's trial court, and
seek a court order directing the witness to appear and
to testify. Qoviously, during the testinony they can
take the Fifth Amendnent. The other route we have is
we can go in through the crimnal system in state
suprene court and seek a m sdeneanor determ nation,
and, obviously, with a msdeneanor there are certain
penalties that the judge can inpose on the wtness,
whether it's incarceration, fines, or whatever. And
then, under both systens, we do have the powers of
contenpt that the court can use. So, that's how the
approach would go if a wtness did not want to
testify.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if comrmittees in the state
| egislature in New York "do any investigatory stuff |ike they do
in Congress,"” such as issue subpoenas, or put people under oath.

MR. CONNER prefaced his answer by stating that he is not the
expert in that [issue]. Notw thstanding that, he proffered that
there is some investigatory work that [the |egislature] does.
He said it certainly holds hearings and questi ons w tnesses.

Number 2200

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HB 527, Version 23-LS1792\H, Bannister, 3/30/04, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version H was before the
committee.

Nunber 2188

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noved [to adopt] Conceptual Anmendnent 1, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

The division is exenpt from AS 37.10,050(a). Fees

collected by the division shall be accounted for in a
sub account used to inplement the programs and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 1, 2004



activities of the division and to nmmintain an
aggressive program of investigation, prosecution, and
all other actions necessary to prevent harmto persons
by violations of AS 45.55 and to seek recovery of
damages, costs, and fees for those harmed by a
violator, and to cover the costs of the division of
its prograns, investigations, and proceedi ngs.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH turned attention to Version H He pointed out
the changes nmade in Version H, including changing the nunber
from 500 to 250 as well as the changes in [Section 3] regarding
the penalties for single and nultiple violations.

Number 2140

VI NCE USERA, Senior Securities Exam ner, Division of Banking,
Securities & Corporations, Departnment of Community & Econom c
Devel opnment (DCED), noted that nost of the fines [the division]
levies are in the snmaller range and are nmeant to be corrective.
He related scenarios in which the [division] has had to find
peopl e [who have noved] out of state and obtain a judgnent. The
af orenenti oned takes a lot of effort and if [the division] were
to do that with every perpetrator, $1 mllion would be difficult
to collect. "But it would be nice to be able to assess a
penalty where that is reasonable and warranted,” he added.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH noted that changes were also nade regarding the
penalties in Section 4 of Version H  Section 5, he noted, would
provide the ability to collect restitution, plus attorneys' fees
and cost. He clarified that if the division has to enploy
attorneys' fees or use its own attorney general, those fees and
costs should not be borne by the general public "through its
treasury,” but should be borne by the wongdoers.

MR, USERA said that's correct. He noted that one change was
made where restitution nust be doubled [page 3, line 12].
However, that may be difficult to negotiate at tines.

Nunber 2014
CHAI R VEYHRAUCH turned to Sections 6 and 7. He noted the |ast
sentence in Section 6, [subsection (f), on page 3, beginning on
line 11] which read as foll ows:

The anount of the restitution paid to the harned

person nmust be two tinmes the anmount of | oss caused to
the person by the violator.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 1, 2004



MR. USERA stated his preference would be to change the word
"must" to "may". He explained, "There are sonme people who,
t hrough benign neglect, do wong. W can get them to pay back
but they don't warrant being punished. And this would put us in
a difficult situation there."

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noted that [subsection (g)] in Section 6 would
al so transfer the burden fromthe public to the perpetrator.

MR. USERA responded that he thinks the concept is fine, though
he added that he's not quite certain how that would work in
terms of the actual |ogistics. He expl ained, "Sonething' s got
to go sone place; it can't just come back into our coffers.”

Nunber 1923
CHAIR WEYHRAUCH returned to Conceptual Anmendnent 1. He
expl ai ned that it woul d  exenpt the division from AS

37.10.050(a), [a statute] which limts the fees that may be
col | ect ed.

MR, USERA said [AS 37.10.050(a)] was enacted in 1990 and "sort

of laid dormant for a long tinme," wuntil sonebody recently
redi scovered it. The statute says that fees cannot be collected
over the actual <cost of doing business. He reflected as
fol |l ows:

Quite honestly, that really limts us. W don't wuse

all the fees that we receive, but it costs us about
$2.5 mllion to do our business, and we bring in
sonewhere in the range of $10-$12 nillion. So,
there's a generous contribution to a general fund
there that would be taken away fromus if this statute
were to be adhered to. And | think an exenption is
warranted in this case, and especially if you' re going
to give us back some of our fines so that we can do
the job that we're enpowered to do.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said that was the point. He turned to the
previous comments of M. Conner, regarding "$15 million
settlenments, the North American Securities, and efforts on Wall
Street, and noney comng back - distributed to the state.” He

asked M. Usera what Al aska's share of that has been.

MR. USERA answered that Alaska's total share of the gl obal
settlenment was about $4.6 million. In response to a followup

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 1, 2004



question from Chair Wyhrauch, he confirned that was receipts to
t he general fund.

Nunmber 1835

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned the Takeover Bid Disclosure
Act. He told M. Usera that he wants to update that Act, and he
asked for M. Usera' s assistance in doing so. He offered a
brief history of the Act.

Number 1776

MR USERA, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, stated that in order to fix the Act it would have to
be gutted. He said there wouldn't be nmuch harmin repealing it.
He noted that [the Act] "came in" in 1976 and has never been
invoked, so "it doesn't seem to be of any utility.” He noted
that Alaska is not a hotbed of nerger activity. He noted there
is the federal WIllians Act, which requires certain disclosures.
He added, "And that's where ... our Act runs afoul of the
WIllianms Act and al so runs afoul of the commerce cl ause."

Nunber 1740
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked the commttee to return focus to HB 527.
Number 1729

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to Conceptual
Amendnment 1. There being no objection, [Conceptual] Anendnent 1
was adopt ed.

Number 1719

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested that M. Usera's previous
reconmendation to change the word "nust” to "may" be considered
by the commttee.

Number 1690

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH [nmoved to adopt Amendnent 2 to Version H], as
fol | ows:

On page 3, line 12

Bet ween "person" and "be"
Del ete "must"

I nsert "may"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 1, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [Amendnent
2] . There being no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 1679

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 3, line 1, and suggested
[ Avendnent 3], to change the word "or" to "and". In response to
a coment by M. Usera, he noted that the [petition by the
adm nistrator] is discretionary, thus using the word "and" woul d

al |l ow ei ther option.
Nunber 1637

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [Amendnent
3]. There being none, [Anendnent 3] was adopt ed.

Nunber 1628

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned attention to subsection (g),
regardi ng "actual reasonable attorney fees and actual reasonable
costs". He said he thinks the court should have discretion,
because, for exanple, there may be a case where it's appropriate
to award | ess. He suggested [Anmendnent 4], to change the word
"shall" to "may".

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to [Amendnent
4]. There being none, [Amendnent 4] was adopt ed.

Nunber 1594

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, in response to a coment by Representative
G uenberg, said he added the provision in Section 7. He
reiterated that Section 7 1is intended to "get all those

wrongdoers, no nmatter where they are, if they're doing business
inthis state.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "It expands the concept of
nexus. "

Number 1546

WALTER JOHNS shared his Native Alaskan nanme with the committee
and revealed that he 1is a shareholder of the Seal aska
Corporation and Coldbelt, Inc, and he lives in Colorado. He
stated that he has been involved wth corporations since they
first started. He admtted he has not had tinme yet to anal yze

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 1, 2004



the proposed |egislation, but he said he always gets concerned
when the state gets involved with Native conpanies. He noted
that he has been involved with five elections, "agai nst Seal aska
Corporation on ... three of them™ He noted that he has also
worked for the Sealaska Corporation and "during the tine |
wor ked for them we won the election process.” He stated, "I am
currently serving on a board for one of our corporations through
the el ection process.”

MR. JOHNS stated his concern that the changes [proposed in HB
527] could have a detrinmental effect on Native corporations. He
said, "I know that right now there are many ... Native people
that are against discretionary voting, because they really don't
understand the application and how you can use it for your

benefit.”" He offered an exanpl e. He clarified that his major
concern is not actually the wording of the bill, but its
interpretation and application. He offered another exanple.

M. Johns stated his opposition to [HB 527] and offered to
answer questions fromthe commttee.

Nunmber 1359

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM asked if M. Johns considers that
corporations in Alaska are of equal value to the state, in the
sense that they fall under an unbrella of equal | aws.

MR. JOHNS responded that he guesses they do, but reiterated his
concern is in regard to the interpretation and application of
| aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Johns if he is aware of "the
nunber of cases that we've heard of people that have indicated
that they weren't given due process in the corporate (indisc. -
over | appi ng voices)."

MR. JOHNS answered yes. He stated, "I can tell you right now
that 30 percent of the people, no matter what you do, wll be
agai nst a corporation.” He offered an exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM offered his belief that "our responsibility
is to nmake sure it's an even playing field for all the people
who are nmenbers of corporations.™

MR. JOHNS questioned what the additional cost would be to the
corporation in the process of making [the playing field] |evel.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM suggested, "It may be immterial whether or
not you appreciate what the state is trying to do, if we
believe, as the legislature, that as a policy it's in the best
interest of all the people of Al aska to have the sanme rules to
live by."

MR, JOHNS responded, "As far as | can see, we have the sane
rules.” He reiterated that he has both run and won el ections by
using the existing laws. He concluded, "If it's equally applied

to all the corporations and not just Native corporations, that
woul d be one thing, too."

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM clarified that t hat is what he is
suggesti ng.

Number 1161

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Johns to clarify what he neans
by discretionary voting.

MR, JOHNS answered that "through the election process people
can, under proxy, find discretionary voting, and then the
corporation can use that to vote and distribute the votes of
candi dates. " He reiterated that those who speak against
di scretionary voting are those who do not know how to use it.
He added, "But it's the best tool that you could have for a
di ssident, if they know how to use that tool."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the change from 500 to 250 in
Section 1 and asked M. Johns if he objects to that provision.

MR. JOHNS answered no. He indicated that his concern is for the
Native corporations that are struggling financially. He noted,
for exanple, that it cost Goldbelt, Inc., approximtely $50,000
to hold an election. He concluded as follows:

If the company's struggling financially, a handful of
people could cone into the state and say ..., "W want
this,” and then they have to go through the process
and, you know, maybe they can't afford to distribute.
If you're broke and don't have nobney, what [are] you
going to do? And then what would the state do? |
mean, that's ny concern right now, because there are
sonme conpani es that are in that predi canent today.

Nunber 1061

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- April 1, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that it may be tine to look at an
omi bus act, but, with 41 days left in the session, it wouldn't
be done this year

Number 1038

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.

[ HB 527 was heard and hel d. ]

[Afictitious HB 690 was presented as an April Fool's joke.]

HB 459- PAPER TRAI L FOR ELECTRONI C VOTI NG MACHI NE

Nunmber 0962

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 459, "An Act requiring an auditable paper trail
for electronic voting nmachines; and providing for an effective
date."

Number 0950

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of HB
459, told the commttee that Ilast night he spoke wth
representatives of the Division of Elections in the |ieutenant
governor's office. He said their concerns are addressed in
t hree anmendnents.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that before the committee was the
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 459, [Version 23-LS1686\Q
Kurtz, 3/29/04.]

REPRESENTATI VE GARA turned to Conceptual Anendnent 1, which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Insert at p.2 line 9:

"(15) No nore than one nmachine that pr oduces
el ectronically generated ballots may be used at a
precinct, except that the Division nay utilize nore
than one machine in places where it determ nes
additional nmachines are needed to accomopdate the
needs of per sons W th disabilities, physi ca

limtations or visual inpairnments.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA stated that one of the concerns has been how
wi de spread the [touch screen voting] machines are going to
beconme. He said the lieutenant governor's office explained that
it has no intention of using nore than one of these machines in

any precinct. He said Conceptual Anendnment 1 confirns that
i ntention. He proffered that one exception mght be to have a
special polling place for people with visual inpairnments in
Anchor age.

Nunber 0890

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendment 1 [text
provi ded previously]. There being no objection, Conceptual
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Nunmber 0857

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

Del ete page 2 lines 14-17.
Insert at page 2 line 14 as foll ows:

"(b) Any software for such equipnment shall be tested
and certified pursuant to AS 15.20.900."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ained that the director of the D vision
of Elections was scared that she would be given certification
duties that she wouldn't be able to undertake. He noted that
the current law, AS 15.20.900, provides that election equipnent,
i ncludi ng software and conputer equi pnent, needs to be certified
and tested before every election. He explained that [Amendnent
2] enphasizes that that rule applies to the software of the
Direct Recording Electronic voting nmachines (DREs) and provides
a new subsection (b).

Number 0800

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to Amendnent 2.
There bei ng none, Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Number 0785

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 3, which read as
follows [original punctuation provided]:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 1, 2004



Del ete page 2 lines 4-8.
Insert at page 2 line 3 after "only" as follows:

"by a voter who requests use of a voting machine that
produces such ballots."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that Amendnent 3 is the only amendnent
that involves a policy call by the commttee. He said the bil
is witten to Iimt the use of DRE nmachines as nuch as possible,
until "the evidence hel ps us develop a better confort level with
them"™ Currently, the bill states that if soneone needs to use
[a touch screen machine] he/she just needs to ask. The Division
of Elections responded that if soneone with a visual inpairnent
is made to say he/she needs to use the machine, that would be
unfair, because it would highlight the handicap. Ther ef or e,
Amendnment 3 woul d change the | anguage so that the voter only has
to request the use of the machine [wi thout proving the need to
do so]. He pointed out that this nmay allow the machines to be
used a little nore frequently.

Number 0723

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to a request made by the
chair, objected to Amendnent 3.

Number 0706
LAURA GLAISER, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the

Li eut enant Governor, stated that the division bought 100 [touch
screen voting machines] and since then, nmany concerns have cone

to the forefront. She nentioned an intent to "back up”
i npl enent ati on. She stated that the machines will be placed in
the regional supervisors' offices. She nentioned a piece of

| egislation that would cone before the |egislature soon that
would allow the increase of "early voting,"” which would allow

the division to "have all 40 ballots available." Wth the
machines in the regional offices, anyone who needs to use them
could go vote at a regional office. However, the staff in the

division, as well as the lieutenant governor's office had a
concern about segregating a group of voters, which is why
[ Amendnment 3] was recommended. She clarified that the division
is not going to do voter outreach or "get everybody all excited

to use the nmachine,” but if the machine is in the regional
of fice and sonebody wants to use it, they will be allowed to do
So. She said the division will do the outreach to the people

that need to use it.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 1, 2004



Number 0584

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that people nmay just want to
try out the machi nes.

M5. GLAISER, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, confirnmed that the division doesn't want to be "in a
pl ace of bl ocking sonmeone” who really wants to use the machi nes.
She told the commttee that [the touch screen voting machi nes]
won't be in polling places for the 2004 elections, wth the
exception of "Access Alaska," and if there is a [request] from
t he Al aska Pi oneers' Hone.

Nunmber 0502

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if the division would nake it known to
everyone that the machines are avail abl e.

Nunmber 0480

M5. GLAISER said the division had intended to do so. She
mentioned the concern [first discussed at a prior hearing] that
not many people use the nachines, and she admtted she is a
little confused "at what direction is before nme." She stated
that she has to be true to what she prom sed the |ieutenant
governor, which is to ensure that his prom se to Sandy Sanderson
and Lynn Koral, [made through] the Frank Haas legislation, is
honored. That neans that the machines have to be nade avail able

to the blind, vision inpaired, and disabled. She said the
division will limt its usage if that's what the |egislature
deci des. Conversely, she stated that if the machine is in a

regional office, she is not going to block its use.
Nunmber 0407

M5. GLAISER, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch,
reiterated that the [touch screen voting] machines are currently
|l ocated in each of the regional offices throughout the state.
In response to a comment nmade by Chair Weyhrauch, she confirnmed
that it is the intent of the division to introduce the machines
to the |legislators. She comented that the division just
recently finished its final training.

Nunber 0321

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 1, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that in letting voters know
that the machines are available, the division should also |et
them know that there is no paper trail and the nachines have
been known to mal function.

M5. GLAI SER suggested that signage could be used to let the
voters know which nmethod of voting provides a paper trail and
whi ch does not.

Nunber 0277

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the signhage also be in
Braille.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned back to Amendnent 3, which woul d
del ete subsection (a). He questioned whether the division would
want to keep subsection (b) in the bill

M5. GLAISER said that discussion was held l|ast night. She
rem nded Representative Guenberg that the major default in
every precinct will be a paper ballot; therefore, that |anguage

may not be necessary.
Number 0180

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested, in regard to Anmendnent 3, that on
page 2, line 3, after the word "ballots", the phrase "by a
voter" be added.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA responded that it would read the sane wth
or wthout that | anguage. He pointed out that [Amendnent 3
woul d take subparagraphs (A) and (B) out, leaving only one
sentence, so that addition wouldn't really be necessary.

Number 0109

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "This goes sonewhere towards sol ving
one of my concerns,” which he said is that if there are only two
people using the nmachine, because of restrictions placed on
others, then the identity of the two people will be exposed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested deleting "but only" [on page 2,
line 3].

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any further discussion on
Amendnent 3.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 1, 2004



Number 0040

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the conmttee anmend
Amendnent 3 to also delete on Iine 3, the phrase ", but only".

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was objection [to the anmendnent
to Anendnent 3]. Wthout objection it was so ordered.

Nunmber 0029

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved his previously stated objection to
Amendnent 3.

Number 0015

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was further objection to
Amendnment 3, as anended. There being none, Anendnent 3, as
anended, was adopt ed.

TAPE 04-53, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE GARA indicated that the intent of HB 459 has
al ways been that a person would get to use the [touch screen
voti ng] machi ne by request.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH turned to the transitional provisions and
ballots cast in 2004. He asked, "Are those all good still?"

Number 0088

M5. G.AI SER nentioned "the funding source" and using federal
funds. She inforned the commttee that federal funds do require
a 5 percent match; therefore, there will be a limted general
fund expense on anything that's related to the Help America Vote
Act (HAVA).

Number 0161

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to [subsection (b)] on page 3.
He opined that |anguage "could be potentially read to prohibit
the use of any state nobney, even as a match." He questi oned
whether a few words should be added to say, "including any
required state match.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that he doesn't think that 1is
necessary. He suggested that where the |anguage currently

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- April 1, 2004



reads, "federal funds", the commttee could choose to add
"including federal matching funds".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to do that.
Nunber 0215

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH clarified that [Conceptual] Amendnent 4 would
read as foll ows:

On page 3, line 3
After "federal funds"

Insert ", including federal nmatching funds,"

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection [to Conceptua
Amendnent 4] . There being no objection, [Conceptual Anendnent
4] was adopt ed.

Number 0281

SANDRA ZI RNHELD, testifying on behalf of herself, prefaced her
testinmony by informng the conmttee that she doesn't have the
current Version Q in front of her. Not wi t hstanding that, she
voiced a mmjor concern by reading an Associated Press article
from Novenber 2002, as foll ows:

A Scurry County - | believe that's in Texas - election
error reversed the outconmes in two comm ssioner races.
A defective conputer chip in the county's optical
scanner msread ballots Tuesday night and incorrectly
tallied a | andsl i de victory for Republ i cans.
Denocrats actually won by w de margins. "The probl em
was di scovered when poll workers becanme suspicious of
the markings of the vote," Scurry County clerk Joan
Bunch sai d. "A new conputer chip was flown to Snyder
from Dallas,"” she said. By Wednesday norning, the
votes had been counted tw ce by hand, and once again
by scanner with the replacenent chip.

M5. ZIRNHELD said she has read countless newspaper articles
regarding elections that have been conprom sed through the use
of | eading brands of touch screen voting machi nes. However, she
said this is the first article that she has read that docunents
the glitch with optical scanner tallying systens. She said she
thinks this is inportant for the commttee to know about, for
two reasons: First, she turned to the fact that the state has
pur chased 100 Diebold nachines in order to be in conpliance with

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 1, 2004



HAVA. She stated that in a conversation last week wth an
enpl oyee of the Division of Elections, she learned that the [the
state's] optical scanning system uses the same tallying software
as the touch screen voting machine. She said [the touch screen
voting machine] has been studied by |eading conputer security
researchers at Johns Hopkins [University] and Rice [University],
who found that the security feature on the machine is extrenely
| ax. She indicated that the sanme touch screen voting nachines
have been inplicated in countless re-election mshaps since
2002. Currently, she said, the state Division of Elections has
no check in place for the tallying system used by its optical

scanners. She offered her wunderstanding that the division
sonetinmes reruns the ballots and checks the second tally wth
the first, but she said that would not catch systematic

mal f uncti on. She opined that HB 459 needs to include |anguage
inserted that "would nmandate the prized, post-election manual
recount in sone subset of precinct with votes cast equaling at
| east 0.5 percent of votes cast statewide.” She explained that
the manual tallies can then be conpared with the electronic
tallies to wverify that the entire system is functioning
correctly. She added that she thinks this should enconpass al
systens, whet her touch screen or optical scanning.

Number 0506

M5. ZIRNHELD expressed that, as a citizen of the state, she
wants to have confidence that the entire election system is
functioning correctly. She noted that Al aska receives high
marks [for its voting process], and she said she can understand
that, since both the legislature and the division take the
matter so seriously. "But | think ny suggestion is needed to
ensure that we're not sinply happily voting with a false sense
of security in our tallying software,” she said.

Nunmber 0527

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.

Number 0536

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Qdaiser if the division has a
"dunmy pack" that it knows ahead of time has "50 percent on
every ballot"” that it can run through the scanner to verify that
the scanner [records] that 50 percent, or does the division just

doubl e-check ballots, wthout knowing the distribution, to make
certain they have the sane results.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 1, 2004



M5. GLAI SER explained that the division runs a sanple ballot
through [the scanner] to ensure that it has the marks it ought.
This test is done in the director's office, she said. Af ter
being tested by the review board, the nenory cards are sent to
the regional AccuVote boards that run the sane test again. Then
the machines are sealed and delivered to the precinct. She
concluded, "So, | think our chances to find sonething |ike that
happening in [an] Al aska election are mninmal, at best.”

Nunmber 0886

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to page 2, lines 27 and 28. He
noted that |anguage defines optically scanned ballots in AS
15. 60. 010. He said he doesn't have that entire statute
avai lable and asked if ™"optical scanning machine" is defined
el sewhere in that statute.

M5. GLAI SER indicated that it is.

Number 0709

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report CSHB 459, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG, returning to the issue of the

definition of optical scanning machine, stated, "It doesn't make
any sense to define optically scanned ballot if you don't
define optical scanning machine.” He indicated that [after

| ooking at a copy given to himby the commttee aide] that Title
15 is general and "covers the whole thing."

Nunmber 0765

REPRESENTATI VE GARA indicated that optically scanned ballots
could only be used in optical scanning nachines; therefore, he
said, "It's an anmendnent that |I'mnot sure gets us anywhere."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that this issue could be
considered on the House floor, since the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee is the last commttee of referral for HB 459.
Nunber 0832

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH rem nded the commttee of the previously stated
notion. He asked if there was any objection. There being none,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- April 1, 2004



[CSHB 459 (STA)] was reported from the House State Affairs
St andi ng Conmi ttee.

HB 460- ALLOMBLE ABSENCES AND PFDS

Nunmber 0879

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH turned to the |ast order of business, which was
HOUSE BILL NO 460, "An Act relating to absences to provide care
for certain relatives for purposes of permanent fund dividend
eligibility; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0900

AURCRA HAWK, Staff to Representative Beth Kerttula, Al aska State
Legislature, on behalf of Representative Kerttula, sponsor,
presented HB 460. She stated that HB 460 woul d nake it possible
for an Alaskan to care for a critically ill or injured famly
menber and not | ose his/her permanent fund dividend (PFD). She
noted that, currently, Alaska statute provides an allowable

absence for a person who is caring for a critically ill famly
menber, only if that famly nenber has to travel out of state
for treatnent. She clarified, "This neans that if your child
who is living out of state, for instance, in college, is hurt or
beconmes ill, you will |ose your dividend if you are required to
spend a long period of tinme out of state to care for them" She
said when a famly menber is ill or injured, it is a stressfu

time, and Al askans should be able to care for a famly nenber
and not have to worry about receiving their dividend, regardl ess
of that famly nenber's residency or where they happen to be
when t hey becone ill.

M5. HAWK noted that there is an anendnent in the commttee
packet, but suggested that the commttee may wsh to listen
first to public testinony.

Nunmber 0978

| RIS MANYA PUNGOW Yl -RREED testified that she is proud to be a
| ong-ti nme Al askan. She related having noved to Alaska in 1970,
and she shared sonme of her history as an Alaskan living in
various parts of the state. She revealed that her current
husband' s nane is Ron Reed, and they own a hone in Juneau.

M5. PUNGOW Yl - REED said her niece, a student of the University

of Al aska, Southeast, sustained a knee injury in Septenber 2001,
whil e on an exchange student program in Al buquerque, New Mexi co,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- April 1, 2004



and needed surgery. Ms. Reed indicated that she [and her
husband] traveled to Al buquerque in Decenber to help take care
of the niece's son while the niece had her surgery.
Concurrently, her son Bryce, who was |living in Denver, Col orado,
at the tine, also cane to Al buquerque. On Decenber 13, 2001,

Ms. Reed said, Bryce was involved in an accident. She rel ated
the details of that accident and the injuries Bryce received as
a result. Bryce was in critical condition at the University of

New Mexi co Hospital

M5. PUNGOW Yl - REED stated that as a result of the conplications
from Bryce's trauma, he is non-verbal, non-nobile, 1is fed
through a tube, and is 100 percent dependent upon others for his
care. Ms. Reed said she has explored the possibility of caring
for Bryce in Juneau, Al aska. She said she also inquired at the
VA [Departnent of Veterans Affairs] office in Anchorage, Al aska,
because her son is eligible to receive "100 percent service-
connected disability." She said she was told that Bryce would
have to be sent to Seattle, Washington. She stated that she is
not confortable "taking that kind of risk," and she declared
that she - as his nother, next-of-kin, and |egal guardian -
woul d not abandon him to return home. She related that there
has been enotional and financial stress associated wth her
son's accident. She offered exanpl es.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH requested that Ms. Reed conplete her testinony,
because comm ttee nmenbers needed to be present at the 10:00 a. m
House fl oor session. He stated that the conmttee would cone
back to the issue. He said, "It's tough when these
ci rcunst ances happen to a famly, and our hearts go out to you."

M5. PUNGOW Yl - REED stated that she is currently prohibited from
getting her PFD, and she enphasized that she has not given up
her Al aska residency.

[ HB 460 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ QURNVENT

Nunber 1464

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:03
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- April 1, 2004



